ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 22, 2010
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz, Vice Chair
Representative Bryce Edgnon

Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Scott Kawasaki
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 297

"An Act establishing the governor's performance schol arship
program and relating to the program establishing the governor's
performance scholarship fund and relating to the fund; relating
to student records; making conform ng anmendnents; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 206
“"AN ACT RELATING TO THE LOCAL CONTRI BUTION TO PUBLIC SCHOOL
FUNDI NG AND PROVI DI NG FOR AN EFFECTI VE DATE. "
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 297

SHORT TI TLE: POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2010



01/ 19/ 10 (H) EDC, FIN

02/ 03/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124
02/ 03/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 10 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 12/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 12/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 12/ 10 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 15/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 15/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 10 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 17/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 17/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 17/ 10 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 19/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPl TOL 106
02/ 19/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 10 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 22/ 10 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPl TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

C. J. REEVES, 11, Vice President

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast Student CGovernnent

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support for HB 297.

JESSI CA ELLER, Student Senat or

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast Student Gover nnent

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support for HB 297 with a
needs based conponent.

CHARLES SEDDON

Class of 2010

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support for HB 297.

LESLI E SEDDON
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 297.

NI COLE CARVAJAL

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support for HB 297 with a
needs based conponent.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 22, 2010



CHELSEY DORMAN, Student Body President

Kenai Peni nsul a Col | ege

Kenai Ri ver Canpus

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 297.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 297.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during
di scussi on of HB 297.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:02:47 AM

CHAI R PAUL SEATON cal l ed the House Education Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:02 a.m Represent ati ves Seaton, Gardner,
Buch, and Edgnon were present at the call to order.
Representatives P. WIson, Keller, and Mmnoz arrived as the
neeting was in progress.

HB 297- POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS

8:03: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 297, "An Act establishing the governor's
performance scholarship program and relating to the program
establishing the governor's performance scholarship fund and
relating to the fund; relating to student records; making
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

8:04:17 AM
C. J. REEVES, Il, Vice President, University of Al aska Sout heast

Student Governnment, University of Al aska Southeast, expressed
support for HB 297, wth the addition of a needs based

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2010



anmendnent . She described the difficulty of attending college

wi t hout financial support. She reported that the UAS student
governnment had polled the student body, and the response had
been that students needed financial help. She stated that,

nationally, Al aska had the snmallest percentage of |ow incone
students attending college. She requested commttee support for
HB 297.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that the bill would not apply
to currently enrolled students.

M5. REEVES acknow edged this.
8. 07:35 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. Reeves if her high school classes had
included the four years of math, four years of science, four
years of English, and three years of social studies which were
required in this bill

M5. REEVES replied that she graduated from a Florida high
school, and that those cl asses were required.

CHAI R SEATON explained that he wanted to determine if the
preparation base required in the scholarship program was
adequately preparing students for coll ege.

8:08: 48 AM

M5. REEVES, in response to Representative WIlson, replied that
she did not feel conpletely prepared for college when she
enrolled at UAS, even though she had attained a 3.8 grade point
at her high school .

8:10:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if the needs based conponent to the
bill should be in addition to the current bill structure.

MS. REEVES declared that a high school grade point average did
not determne a student's success in college. She expressed a
preference for SB 224, the Senate version of HB 297.

8:11:41 AM

JESSI CA ELLER, Student Senator, University of Al aska Southeast
Student Governnent, University of Al aska Southeast, stated that

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 22, 2010



Al aska has had the |owest financial support for students over
the past 16 years. She opined that giving financial aid to |ow
i ncome Al askan students would benefit the Al askan work force and

econony. She shared that she would not personally qualify for
t he needs based support, but that she still supported HB 297.
8:12: 59 AM

CHAI R SEATON nentioned that Jessica's father was a nationally
recogni zed, award w nning teacher in Honer. He asked if the
courses she took in high school had prepared her for UAS, or was
remedi al coursework necessary.

M5. ELLER replied that she took four years of math and three
years of science, as well as a conmunity service requirenent.
She opined that the grade point average (GPA) was not as
inportant as the rigor of the curriculum in preparation for
uni versity. She stated that she was well prepared for college
cour sewor k

8:15:54 AM

CHARLES SEDDON, Cl ass of 2010, expressed his continued interest
in the Governor's Performance Scholarship (GPS) since its

announcenent . He reported that he had dropped his elective
cl asses, added nore science and math classes, and gave up a part
time job and his hobbies, all in order to neet the criteria of

the scholarship. He stated that the scholarship offered himthe
opportunity to continue his education and remain in Al aska. He
asked that HB 297 be anended to include the Cass of 2010. He
described hinself as a needs based student, as well as an A

grade point average (GPA) student, and nore than willing to earn
his way.
8:18: 08 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked whether the nmath and science classes
avai | abl e were adequate preparation for coll ege.

MR. SEDDON replied that he was enrolled in college algebra and
had taken a private pilot ground school course. He stated that
he was not taking any renedi al courses.

8:18: 51 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what area of study holds his
interest, and where, without the GPS, he has considered in or
out of state postsecondary study.

MR. SEDDON replied that he was interested in nmedicine, and that,
al though he wanted to stay in Al aska, he would probably have to
go out of state.

8:19: 38 AM

LESLI E SEDDON shared that she was the parent of a 2010 graduate
and that she had submtted a witten testinony. She referred to
the Transition Provision in HB 297, page 13, lines 19-21. She
stated the inportance of including the graduating class of 2010,
and she noted that the seniors had worked hard to neet the
requirenments so as not to be excluded from the schol arship
opportunity. She acknowl edged that the financial assistance
would not be available wuntil July, 2011. She opined that
funding was available to include the class of 2010.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER acknow edged the disappointnent for
graduating seniors, and asked what lead to the belief that the
schol arship would be offered to these students.

M5. SEDDON replied that the high school had notified the
seniors, and worked with the students to adjust curriculum to
qualify. She opined that as the GPS was high on the governor's
priority, she had assunmed that it would pass this year.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER cl arified that HB 297 was not witten to
take effect in the current year, and that there had never been a
decision to specifically exclude the graduating class of 2010

She stated the possibility that HB 297 would not pass, or could
be anended.

8:23:46 AM

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that the current version of HB 297 did
not have a needs based conponent.

8:24:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON suggested a review of the devel opnent of
HB 297.

8:24:31 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2010



CHAI R SEATON outlined the process for passage of a bill, and how

funding is separately all ocat ed. He explained that the current
fundi ng suggestion was for an account from which the generated
earnings would be used for the schol arships. He wel coned the

preparation for college that students were already exhibiting.
8:26:43 AM

Nl COLE CARVAJAL, University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF), provided
statistics for low incone famly nmenbers who go to coll ege which
showed the national average was 28 percent, and that the Al aska
average of 7.9 percent was the lowest rate in the US. She
menti oned that the next closest was Nevada with 14.2 percent.
She directed attention to the fact that Al aska had ranked | ast

for 16 years. She spoke out in support for an anendnent of HB
297 to include a needs based conponent. She opined that this
was an investnment in a trained workforce for Al aska, as many
students would not otherwise attend college. She said that
al though she qualified for the University of Al aska Scholars
Program she still needed to work to support herself.

8:29: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if M. Carvajal had taken four
years of high school math.

M5. CARVAJAL replied no, but that she did take a rigorous course
| oad. She expressed her concern that this focus for math,
English, social studies, and science would drain resources from
alternative cl asses.

8:29:36 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked about unnet financial need. He referred to
previ ous testinony about the Oregon Plan, and he indicated that
some financial plans required student participation. He asked
what anount of student financial participation was appropriate.

M5. CARVAJAL replied that it was not unreasonable for students
to hold a job while attending school, but she opined that it may
i nhi bit academ c success.

CHAI R SEATON relayed that the Oregon Plan had indicated how 15

hours of weekly work for 48 weeks each year, was reasonabl e and
not proven to be detrinental.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2010



M5. CARVAJAL replied that this my depend on the job, as sone
jobs pay minimally. She offered her belief that a set nunber of
wor ki ng hours was nore reasonable than a set anount of noney to
contri bute.

8:32:32 AM

CHELSEY DORMAN, Student Body President, Kenai Peninsula College,
Kenai River Canpus, reiterated that this bill was an investnent
for Alaska and its future students.

8:33:28 AM

CHAIR SEATON described the two opportunities that this
schol arshi p provi ded: vocational /techni cal, and acadeni c. He
directed attention to an anmendnent to allow a cross application
for the use of a scholarship to either track

M5. CARVAJAL replied that a discussion anmong the coalition of
student |eaders had supported equal funding be applied to either
track.

8:35:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON identified the program as being nore than
a scholarship, but as education reform He asked how the
program woul d be seen as an incentive for |ower inconme students.

M5. DORMAN said that there was strong support from the snal
conmuni ties. She noted a desire for an option to the Pell
grants, and she reported that Al aska was the only state w thout
a state funded schol arshi p.

8:37:25 AM

M5. CARVAJAL reported that she would have taken 3 years of
science and 4 years of math to neet the requirenents, but she
opi ned that the students who qualified for the needs based may
not have the hone support to take the necessary requirenents

She expressed the primary concern should be the creation of a
schol arshi p program

8:38: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON cl arified that support for the needs based
program was twofol d: to help low incone students receive

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2010



financial assistance and to offer the framework for required
cl asses.

M5. CARVAJAL agreed that it would encourage students to take
nore rigorous classes. She offered her belief that she would
have been better prepared for college had this been avail abl e.

8:38:43 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked that every wtness respond
whet her their school had offered the 4 years of science, 4 years
of math, and 3 years of social studies, and, if not, would their
parents have insisted that the school offer this curriculum if
the GPS existed. She expressed a desire for schools to offer
t hese courses.

8:39: 33 AM

M5. CARVAJAL replied that North Pole H gh School did offer these
courses, and that her mther wuld have denmanded that the
courses be offered.

8:39:45 AM

M5. DORMVAN stated that Nikiski H gh School also offered these
courses, and that the parents of students would have also
demanded that the courses be provided.

8:41:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked the students present to respond
whet her their high school had offered this course curriculum
[ Ei ght students raised their hands to indicate yes.] Next ,
Representative P. WIson asked if their parents would have
insisted that these classes be offered. [ Six students raised
their hands to indicate yes.]

CHAI R SEATON asked if the students would have requested the
classes if their parents had not.

M5. ELLER stressed the inportance of curriculum reform to hold
hi gh school students to a high standard, but she pointed out
that what the parents want nay not always be best for the
students. Furthernore, she expressed concern for keeping the
arts and foreign | anguages prograns.

8:44:14 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- February 22, 2010



CHAIR SEATON, in reference to the earlier poll conducted by
Representative P. WIlson, clarified that nost of the students
had responded that the curriculum was available, and that their
parents woul d al so have insisted on the curricul um

8:44: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON asked how nany of the students present
were fromsmall schools. |[The hand count was 8.]

CHAI R SEATON asked to clarify the definition of a snmall school.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVMON replied that it was any school outside of
Fai r banks and Anchor age.

8:45: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked how many of the students present
were required to enroll in renedial classes. [ The hand count
was 7. ]

CHAI R SEATON interjected that although the rigorous classes were
avai |l abl e, students may not have taken them and he noted that a
little over half of the students present had to take renedi al
cl asses.

8.46: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

8:46: 37 AM

The comm ttee took an at-ease from8:46 to 8:50.

8: 50: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the packet of anendnents and
began consi deration and di scussi on.

8:51: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ noved to adopt Amendnent 1, |abeled Version
26G 2, (2/12/2010), (12:42 pm, which read as follows [origina
punct uati on provided]:

Page 1, line 9, following "award of a":

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- February 22, 2010



| nsert "merit-based"

Page 3, line 17, follow ng "academ c schol arshi p":
Del ete "and"
| nsert ","

Page 3, line 17, follow ng "school schol arship”:

Insert "and a needs-based schol arshi p"”
Page 7, line 5, follow ng "awards for the":

Del ete "progrant

| nsert "nerit-based prograns”

Page 8, following line 3:

| nsert:
" Sec. 14. 43. 828. Eligibility for a needs-based
scholarship and maxi nrum awards. (a) Subject to
appropriation, the commssion shall award a needs-

based scholarship to a student who neets the
eligibility criteria for the award

(b) A student is eligible to receive a needs-based
scholarship if the student

(1) is eligible for a nerit-based acadenic
scholarship or a merit-based career and technica
school schol arshi p; and

(2) can denonstrate in a year in which the student
receives a scholarship that the student has unnet
financi al need greater than $2,000.

(c) The maxi rum anount for the needs-based award is
50 percent of unnmet financial need greater than
$2, 000.

(d) The qualified postsecondary institution attended
by the student shall determ ne unnmet financial need by
subtracting from the student's allowable standard
costs of attendance at the institution all non-Ioan

sources of financial support, including an expected
famly contribution and all federal, state, and
private scholarships or grants received by the
st udent .

(e) In this section,

(1) "allowable standard costs of attendance" neans

(A) for a student who receives a nerit-based academ c
schol arship, the | esser of the

(i) standard costs of attendance at the University of
Al aska, as determ ned by the comm ssion; or

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 22, 2010



(i) actual costs of attendance at the qualified
post secondary institution that the student attends or
plans to attend, as determ ned by the conm ssion;

(B) for a student who receives a nerit-based career
and technical school schol ar shi p, the costs of
attendance at the qualified postsecondary institution
that the student attends or plans to attend, as
determ ned by the comm ssion based on room and board
costs that do not exceed the standard room and board
costs at the University of Al aska as determ ned by the
comm SsSi on;

(2) "expected famly contribution” neans the anmount a
student or the student's famly is expected to pay
towards the student's costs of at t endance, as

determined by use of the nost recent federal Free
Application for Federal Student Aid."

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON obj ected for discussion.
8:51: 50 AM

CHAI R SEATON noved to adopt conceptual Anmendnent 1 to proposed
Amendrent  1:

Page 1, line 17, followng, "Eligibility for a":
Del et e "needs-based schol ar shi p"
I nsert "unmet needs schol arshi p conponent ™

CHAI R SEATON explained that the intent is to include an unnet
needs conponent in the GPS.

8:53:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether the unnmet needs would be
cal cul ated after possible receipt of a federal PELL G ant.

CHAI R SEATON explained that this conponent would be offered if
there was an unnet need of nore than $2, 000.

8:54:33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, directed attention to the bill page 3,

line 12, Article 11A, and said the reference suggests that the
conceptual anmendment i s unnecessary.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 22, 2010



CHAI R SEATON agreed that the conceptual anendnent did not change
the structure of the bill, but that this would clarify the
perception for needs based schol arshi p.

8:56:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated support for conceptual Anmendnent,
and pointed out that it will relate to | anguage on page 1, |ines
9, 17-19, and page 2, line 4, as well as others. He asked for

comment from the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
( EED) .

CHAI R SEATON, in response to Representative Keller, explained
that, as a conceptual anendnent, the |anguage would be nade
consi stent throughout the bill.

8:57:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ stated support for conceptual Anmendnent 1,
and acknow edged how input from the University of Alaska
students was the inpetus for this proposed Arendnent 1.

8:58:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether proposed Amendnent 1 and
concept ual Amendmrent 1 woul d be t abl ed for further
consi deration. She al so asked for coment from EED.

8:59:16 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (EED), said that
concept ual Arendnent 1 did provide <clarity for proposed
Amendnent 1, and it did follow the intent of the EED.

8:59: 57 AM

CHAIR SEATON indicated that the I|anguage for conceptual
Amendnent 1 would be carried throughout the bill. He
underscored the need to provide this |anguage for purposes of
clarity.

9:00: 55 AM

CHAI R  SEATON, hearing no objection, announced concept ual
Amendnent 1, to Anendnent 1, adopt ed.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- February 22, 2010



9:01: 15 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from9:01 to 9: 03.
9: 03: 05 AM

CHAI R SEATON referred to proposed Anendnent 1, page 2, |lines 4-
5, [subsection (c)] and explained that if, after reception of
all other financial aid, there was still an unnmet need greater
t han $2,000, this would pay 50 percent of the unmet need.

9:04: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON asked if there was a ceiling for this
fi nanci al award.

CHAI R SEATON replied that the ceiling would be 50 percent of the
unmet need.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON poi nted out that the tuition rates for two
years at the University of Alaska was included in the bill, so
that woul d be a part of the ceiling.

CHAI R SEATON replied that the nerit based scholarship was not
tied to the tuition but to the unnmet need of the entire cost of
attendi ng col |l ege. He explained that the purpose was to assist
with access to college, and he said that if a student had no
other means for funding after other sources were exhausted, this
woul d provide 50 percent of the unmet need.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON i ndi cated that there was not a ceiling.

CHAI R SEATON responded that the cost would be determ ned by the
depart nent.

9:07:43 AM

MR. JEANS directed attention to proposed Amendnent 1, page 2,
line 12, "allowable standard costs of attendance” which he
expl ained was a term used by the Al aska Postsecondary Commi ssion
for determining the total costs of attendance, which was capped
by the standard costs of attendance at the University of Al aska.
He explained that after other scholarships and grants were
consi dered, the balance of cost was addressed through the needs
based conponent.

9:09: 27 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- February 22, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON stated support for the provision but he
gquestioned an increase in the overall demand with the additional
fundi ng conponent.

MR. JEANS antici pated the sanme nunber of participants, but that
the fiscal note woul d be adjusted.

9:10: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ declared her surprise at the 50 percent
provi sion, as she reflected that earlier discussion was for the
state to pay all but $2,000.

9:11: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed to proposed Amendnent 1, page 2,
lines 15-19, and asked to clarify that (i) referred to the
University of Alaska, and (ii) referred to other qualified
post secondary institutions.

9:12: 06 AM

MR. JEANS addressed proposed Amendnent 1, page 2, line 14, and
stated that the cost was based on the lesser of (i) or (ii). He
el aborated on an earlier question by Representative Edgnon, and
noted that the cap was the cost to attend the University of
Al aska.

9:12: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked about the availability of the
standards that the conmmssion uses to determne costs of
at t endance.

MR. JEANS replied that the information would be provided to the
cormittee, and he recounted that costs include books, housing
and neal s.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that the standards are not in
st at ut e.

9:13: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH said the figures are based on 2010 tuition
and asked direction to locate the reference in the bill.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 15- February 22, 2010



MR. JEANS replied that it was on page 7, |line 8.
REPRESENTATI VE BUCH poi nted out that this was the cap.

MR. JEANS agreed that this was the cap on the performance
schol ar shi p. He clarified that a second cap was for the
al l owabl e standard cost of attendance, which was a separate
cal cul ati on

9:14:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, referring to the 50 percent of unnet
needs, identified that this was distinct from the |evels of
performance award, which retained the incentive of higher award
for higher grades.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if that was accurat e.

9:15:46 AM

MR. JEANS expl ained that even if a lower |evel scholarship was
attained, there was still the unnmet need conponent to help pay
for the total allowable cost. He said that a 100 percent

coverage for the unnet need above $2,000 would negate the val ue
for the different levels of scholarship. That was the reason to
only offer a 50 percent coverage.

9:16: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked to clarify that the unnmet need
covered food, |odging, and books and sone of the tuition.

MR. JEANS concurred.
9:17: 39 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON renoved her objection.

CHAI R SEATON, hearing no further objection, announced Anmendnent
1, as anended, adopted.

9:18: 01 AM
REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ noved to adopt Amendnent 2, |abeled 26G 2,

(2/10/2010), (1:14 pm, which read as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 16- February 22, 2010



Page 5, line 28:
Del ete "grade-point"
I nsert "grade"

Page 5, line 30, follow ng "schol arship;":

Insert "the top tier is the A average tier, the second
tier is the B average tier, and the third tier is the
C plus average tier; the grade-point average for the A
average tier is 3.5 or higher, for the B average tier
is less than 3.5 but no less than 3.0, and for the C
plus average tier is less than 3.0 but no less than
2.5; the board shall set by regulation mninmm
requi renents based on a substantially simlar standard
for districts that do not assign grades;

Page 6, followng line 2:

| nsert " (4) a process by which a student who
neets the grade standards in (2) of this subsection
for a particular tier, but does not neet the m ninum
scores established under (3) of this subsection for
that tier, may apply for a |l ower tier scholarship;"”

Page 6, line 3:

Del ete "(4)"
I nsert "(5)"
Page 6, line 5:
Del ete "(5)"
| nsert "(6)"
Page 6, line 7:
Del ete "(6)"
I nsert "(7)"

Page 6, line 23:
Del ete "grade-point"
| nsert "grade"

Page 6, line 24, follow ng "school;":

Insert "the mninumis C plus average; the C plus
average requirenment is a grade-point average of 2.5 or
hi gher; the board shall set by regulation mninum
requi renents based on a substantially simlar standard
for districts that do not assign grades;"”

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON obj ected for discussion

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -17- February 22, 2010



9:18: 20 AM

CHAI R SEATON explained that the intent of proposed Anendnent 2
is to provide a letter grade qualification rather than a grade
poi nt average (GPA) nunber.

9:19: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whet her anendnent alters the
function of the bill.

9:20: 05 AM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.
9: 20: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked where the award tiers are set out
in the bill.

CHAI R SEATON | ocated the | anguage on page 5.
9:21: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the highest tier was 3.5 or 4.0
She offered her belief that Tier A should not be a 3.5 GPA, and
asked if it was appropriate to put this into statute.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON, reflecting that there is not a grading
standard in Al aska, asked how this will be addressed.

CHAI R SEATON replied that the standardi zed tests would establish
t he bar.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER ascertained that a simlar problem arose
with the Al aska Scholars program and pointed out that 34
percent, of those students, required renedial classes in nath or
English. She stated her belief that the intent is to reform K-
12 education, and opined that Amendnent 2, by lowering the top
tier, was diluting the rigor of the bill. She said, "An A
shoul d be sonet hing special."”

CHAI R SEATON asked to clarify whether an A- would drop a student
off the top tier.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER replied that, in the broader sense, "an A
is an A, and a B is a B." She reported that students taking

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 18- February 22, 2010



Advanced Pl acenment (AP) classes could attain a GPA higher than
4.0. She stressed her desire to retain the rigor of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked to hear comment from EED
9: 26: 46 AM

MR. JEANS shared that the governor desires that both the GPA and
the letter grades be reflected in the |egislation. He offered
that as students would be taking a nore rigorous curriculum a
3.5, or higher, GPA should qualify for the highest |evel
schol ar shi p.

9:27:49 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was a statewide standard for a 3.8
or a 3.5 GPAto translate to a letter grade.

9: 28: 29 AM

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Education and Early Developnent (EED), replied
that there is not a statewi de standard, that each district has
its own standard. He shared that sone districts use a 4-point
scale, and a few use a 5-point scale, for advanced placenent
courses. He noted that sone districts also give significance to
a plus or mnus designation, but there is not a standard for
this, either. He sunmarized that, generally, a 3.5 GPA neans
that a student has attained half A's and half B's.

9:29: 37 AM
CHAI R SEATON pointed out that there is nothing in the bill to
standardi ze the scale used, or give additional weight for taking

AP cl asses.

MR. JEANS declared that the departnent's intent is to require
districts to use a 4-point GPA scale.

CHAI R SEATON observed that this should be stipulated in the
bill.

9: 30: 59 AM
REPRESENTATIVE BUCH stated his understanding that proposed

Amendnment 2 is an attenpt to establish in statutory definitions
of letter grades for GPA ranges.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -19- February 22, 2010



MR. JEANS concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNQOZ asked about the cut scores for the
Schol astic Aptitude Test (SAT) and the ACT test requirenents.

MR. JEANS replied that EED could nake recommendations, but that
it was up to the Alaska State Board of Education EED to adopt
t hose scores.

9:31:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to receive a conparison of the
econonics for the various award | evels, to better understand the
i ncentive for each tier.

MR. JEANS agreed to provide the information to the commttee.
9:34: 29 AM

MR. MORSE, in response to Representative P. WIson, explained
that "less than" is nore explicit because a decinmal can be
carried out several places.

9:35: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON, referring to proposed Anendnent 2, page
1, line 10, asked if "for districts" includes private schools,
correspondence schools, and home school s.

MR. JEANS replied that sone districts are on a standards based
system and do not assign grades. He explained that EED
requires, as part of the GPS approval process, that the
standards are convertible to a letter grade.

9: 36: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, referring to earlier testinony that a
3.5 GPA could nean half A's and half B's, requested renoval of
t he | anguage | abeling the top tier as an A average.

CHAIR SEATON offered an exanple for an academ c student who
could not get an A in physical education, and therefore would
not qualify for the top tier. He asked if that was encouraging
excel l ence, or mght a student seek out |ess challenging courses
in order to achieve and nmaintain an A average. He asked whet her

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 20- February 22, 2010



the scholarship GPA will be nmeasured by the core classes al one,
or include every class taken.

9:39:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed the need for AP classes to be
graded on a 5-point scale, which would allows a student the
opportunity to take nore difficult classes, w thout conprom sing
their GPA She offered her support for the scholarship to be
measured only agai nst the core classes.

9:41: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered that this may put extrene pressure
on a teacher for grading.

9:42:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH decl ared that HB 297 is a transition towards
a nore rigorous curriculum He conveyed that students require
incentives to take challenging classes, and opined that proposed
Amendnent 2 does not |ower expectations, but rather quantifies
grades on a statew de |evel

9:44: 04 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative Edgnon's coment, said
that the UA Scholars Programis awarded to the top 10 percent of
students attendi ng high school.

REPRESENTATI VE EDAGVION asked if it is also awarded at vocati ona
school s.

CHAIR SEATON clarified that the UA Scholars Program is not
funded by the state.

9:45: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON asked about the practical application of
proposed Amendment 2, and how it relates with the UA Schol ars
Program

9:45: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQOZ expressed support for proposed Anendnent 2,

as it offers another opportunity for a student to qualify for a
schol arshi p award, outside of the UA Schol ars Program

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -21- February 22, 2010



9:46:12 AM

CHAI R SEATON expressed his concern that grade point inflation
m ght occur, in order for students to qualify for the GPS.

9:46: 59 AM

MR. JEANS referred to the A B, and C+ average and offered his
belief that the governor intent is for students to qualify using
the letter grades as a basis. He noted that the bill does not
require a student to achieve straight A's in order to naintain
a 4.0 GPA and qualify for the top tier award; an encouragenent
for students to take a rigorous class | oad.

9:48: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt conceptual Anendnent 1 to
Amendnent 2:

Delete "3.5"
| nsert "3.8"

Del ete "A average tier"” [all letter grade tiers]
Insert "tier 1, tier 2, or tier 3"

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that this anmendnent wll bring
accuracy to the bill. She opined that a student's score
reflecting half A's and half B's, resulting in a 3.5 GPA, does
not constitute an A student, and, hence, the top tier should not
be considered an A average tier.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON obj ected for di scussion.

9:49: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER argued that the anendnent is insignificant
as there are three basic criteria for a student to qualify: the
grades, the <cut score on the ACI or SAT test, and the
curricul um

9:50:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  P. WLSON expressed concern for striving

students, and she suggested having conceptual Anmendment 1
reflect a GPA of 3.6.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -22- February 22, 2010



9:51:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH commented that it is inportant to retain the
advanced placenment courses, but that it is also necessary to
return to a statewide standard of 4.0 GPA He stated support
for proposed Anendnent 2, but not for the conceptual anendnent.

9: 53: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that the cut scores for ACT
and SAT are not in statute. She agreed that the AP classes
encourage students to achieve, but she opined that the 4.0 GPA
is a disincentive. She offered her belief that should the tier
| evel s be set |ow, an unintended consequence may occur and said,
“"[l1t may cause] a lazy factor for A students, many of whom don't
learn great work habits because ... [school is] easy from
ki ndergarten on." She enphasized that no matter where the
standard is set, sonmeone would al ways be excluded. She stressed
that establishing half A's and half B's as the top tier, for
GPS, does not reward the "best of the best."

9:55: 27 AM

CHAIR SEATON opined that this is not the only perfornmance
i ncentive. He expressed his desire for every student to be
encouraged to excel, and not just the straight A student. He
stated opposition the conceptual Anendnent 1.

9:56: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON stated opposition to the conceptua
anendnent .

9:56:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, recalled the GPS goal of reaching for
real excellence, and expressed di sappointnment. She said, "I see
this as building in slack for the best already."

9:57: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked what determ nes an A grade.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER replied that 4.0 is an A and 3.8 is a
B+.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 23- February 22, 2010



CHAI R SEATON clarified that conceptual Amendnment 1,to Anmendnent
2, renpoves the A average term and introduces a different | abel.

9:57:41 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from 9:57 to 9:58.
9:58: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER rel ayed that the argunment was convincing
and stated support for the conceptual amendnent. He said he had
not considered that the cut score is not in statute. |In further
reflection he said, "There "really is an alnobst unstoppable
pressure to | ower [educational] standards.™

9:59: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON noted the disparity of instructional
service and curriculum quality anong the 53 statew de school
districts and said that he would defer to the judgnment EED. He
stated his opposition to conceptual Amendnent |.

10: 00: 31 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON stated that this bill is nmeant to
stinmulate education reform She enphasized that the state's
current education system is not perform ng adequately. She

expressed support for setting higher standards, and stated
support for the conceptual anmendnent.

10: 01: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his belief that this will set such a tight
grade range that grade inflation could become an issue. He
stated that any grade lower than an A may disqualify a student
fromthe top tier, and conjectured that grades are a target and
an inpetus, not an end all. He opined that an A tier for a GPA
of 3.5, and above, is reasonable and encourages a rigorous
curricul um The benefit to student achievenent by setting a
hi gher | evel is questionable.

10: 03: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, referring to Representative Edgnon's
deference to the judgnent of EED, offered her belief that
departnmental judgnent wll be based on the judgnent of the
current admnistration. She agreed that there is a disparity in

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 24- February 22, 2010



educat i onal opportunities for rural and wurban districts,
enphasi zing that there is not grade disparity, but achievenent
di sparity. She stressed that conceptual Anendnent 1 wll
reserve the highest GPS award for students who denonstrate the
hi ghest achi evenent .

10: 05:19 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner and Keller
voted in favor of conceptual Anendnent 1 to Anendnent 2.
Representatives Buch, Minoz, P. WIson, Edgnon, and Seaton voted
agai nst it. Therefore, conceptual Anendnment 1, to Anmendnent 2,
failed by a vote of 2-5.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON renoved her objection to Anendnent 2.

CHAI R SEATON, hearing no further objection, announced Anmendnent
2 adopt ed.

[ HB 297 was hel d over. ]

10: 07: 58 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 10:08 a. m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 25- February 22, 2010



